# MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE COUNCIL HELD IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, CITY HALL ON MONDAY, MAY 4<sup>TH</sup> 1931 AT 8:00 P.M.

#### PRESENT:

Acting-Mayor H. C. E. Anderson Alderman Brown Alderman Cartwright Alderman Huggett Alderman Wilson

The Minutes of the regular meeting of the Council, held on Monday, April 20<sup>th</sup> 1931, copies of which had previously been furnished to each member of the Council, were taken as read and on motion of Alderman Huggett, seconded by Alderman Cartwright, adopted.

# Correspondence was received, read and dealt with as follows:

From Mrs. J. V. MacLeod, and family conveying deep appreciation for the sympathy expressed by Council in the passing of John Virgil MacLeod. FILED.

From the North Shore Lady Laurier Club, applying for permission to hold a Tag Day in the City and on the Ferries on Saturday, May 30<sup>th</sup> next in aid of the Sunlight Clinic and Crippled Children.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Huggett and resolved that the application be granted – privileges in this instance as in the case of the local Branch of the S.P.C.A. to extend to the City Streets and the North Vancouver Ferry Wharf.

From the Chief Engineer, Department of Public Works, advising that the time of completion for work being carried out under the "Unemployment Relief Act" had been extended to the 1<sup>st</sup> of July 1931.

RECEIVED AND FILED.

From the North Vancouver Horticultural Society, requesting the Council as in past years, to again donate prizes for the best-kept boulevard – Total amount involved \$30.00.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the application be referred to the Park's Committee with power to act.

From the Provincial Field Corps Commissioner, requesting the name of the Inspector who may be appointed by the Council with respect to the application and enforcement of the provisions of the "Noxious Weeds Act 1931".

Moved by Alderman Huggett, seconded by Alderman Brown and resolved that the City Engineer be and is hereby appointed the Municipality's Inspector under the Act and that the Department be notified accordingly.

From Gwynne R. Hughes, requesting the Council to contribute the sum of \$30.00 towards the purchase of one set of new tires for the Ambulance.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Huggett and resolved that the request be granted and that the sum of \$30.00 be and is hereby authorized paid to Mr. Hughes on production of satisfactory evidence that the tires have been purchased and paid for.

From the Secretary of the North Vancouver District School Sports Committee requesting the use of Mahon Park for the combined District school sports afternoon on Friday, June 5<sup>th</sup>.

Moved by Alderman Huggett, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the application be granted.

From the Principal of Queen Mary School, requesting the use of Mahon Park for the annual sports of that school on Friday, May 29<sup>th</sup>.

Moved by Alderman Huggett, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the application be granted.

From Mrs. L. C. Campbell, 349 5<sup>th</sup> Street East, in respect to injuries said to have been sustained by herself through tripping on a City sidewalk in the three hundred block Fifth Street East.

Following examination the Engineer reported that the walk had been properly constructed in the first instance.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Brown and resolved that the communication be referred to the Solicitor with power to act.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Brown and resolved that the Collector give the requisite six months notice to Mr. John Bull provided for in Section 248 of the "Municipal Act" in respect of the delinquent taxes and interest and the current year's taxes totalling in all at this date \$1,962.72 upon the one hundred and fifty feet of foreshore in front of Mission Indian Reserve No. 1.

From John Bull Coal and Supplies applying for rough filling free of charge to be used for trackage at the John Bull Wharf in front of the Mission Indian Reserve – the material to be taken from Lots 17 to 20, Block 36, D. L. 552 – property that was formerly held under Agreement for sale by John Bull and since Quite claimed to the City.

The Engineer said he was opposed to the application on the grounds that while the property was held by Mr. Bull considerable hauling had been done and a deep hole left into which the overhanging bank might fall at any time thereby endangering property on the higher levels.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Huggett and resolved that the application be not entertained.

From Mrs. H. Walter, 151 16<sup>th</sup> Street West, applying to have the Willows cut down surrounding her property – Lot 21A of 21 to 27, Block 38, D. L. 548.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Brown and resolved that the application be referred to the Engineer with power to act.

From W. Gray, 356 26<sup>th</sup> Street East, on behalf of himself and other property owners applying to have the two and three hundred blocks on Twenty-sixth Street East, graded and a turning for cars laid out at the corner of Ridgeway Avenue and Twenty-Sixth Street.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the application be referred to the Board of Works Committee with power to act.

From H. E. Ducommun, 2974 5<sup>th</sup> Avenue West, Vancouver, applying for a number of buckets lying near the rock crusher site for use as an elevator for a sawdust burner. The applicant was agreeable to pay \$1.00 each for the best of them.

The Engineer declared the buckets were of no value to the City and had been lying at the site for some years.

Moved by Alderman Brown, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that Mr. Ducommun's offer be accepted to purchase as many of the buckets as he requires.

From A. E. T. Eckford, applying for some help in cleaning up the one hundred and thirty-two feet of prize boulevard fronting on his property – damaged as a result of the City constructing a sidewalk and a sewer.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Huggett and resolved that the application be referred to the Board of Works Committee for report.

From Albert and Annie Spencer, applying for a sidewalk leading to Larson Road to be constructed in the five hundred block Twenty-eight Street West, and a street light to be installed at the same location.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Huggett and resolved that the application for a Sidewalk be referred to the Board of Works Committee and a Street light to the Fire and Light Committee for report.

From R. O. Boult and others, drawing attention to the bad condition of the recently constructed trail at Twenty-First Street and Mosquito Creek.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Brown and resolved that the application be referred to the Engineer with power to act.

From F. W. Kendrick and others living in the five hundred block Twelfth Street East, applying for the boulevard to be graded and levelled in front of their properties,

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Brown and resolved that the application be referred to the Board of Works Committee for report.

From R. Hedley and three others applying for a Cement sidewalk to be laid on the West side of Mahon Avenue between Fourteenth and Fifteenth Streets.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the application be referred to Committee of the Whole.

From the Sons of England, Western Rose Lodge number 296, applying for free transportation (one way) on the City Ferries for some two hundred and fifty Vancouver members who are to attend the annual Church parade to be held at a North Vancouver Church on Sunday afternoon, May 31<sup>st</sup>.

On motion Mr. W. J. Elder was heard in support of the application. Mr. Elder said there was considerable competition among the various lodges to stage this annual event and it was now five years since the North Vancouver Lodge had the honour. There was some expense to be borne by the Advisory Committee in getting the Vancouver members here and if the Council would grant free transportation one way he was reasonably sure the service could be arranged to be held in this City.

Moved by Alderman Huggett, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the application for free transportation for those taking part in the parade from Vancouver to North Vancouver be granted.

From the Secretary of the U.B.C.M. advising that this year's Convention will be held at New Westminster – that resolutions to be considered should be submitted before the 1<sup>st</sup> of August, and that the annual fee of \$50.00 was now due.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Huggett and resolved that the communication be referred to the Finance Committee with power to act.

From the Registrar and Measuring Surveyor of the Shipping, submitting form for application for approval of name for the new ferry now building, and requesting certified copy of the Minutes of Council authorizing the Clerk to sign and complete other forms required for the registration of the vessel.

"Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Huggett and resolved that GEO. S. SHEPHERD, as City Clerk, BE, AND HE IS, HEREBY EMPOWERED to sign, seal and deliver the DECLARATION OF OWNERSHIP, and any and all documents that may be required in connection with the registration of the vessel named NORTH VANCOUVER FERRY NO 4 owned by this Corporation, and to make all necessary declarations in connection therewith, as required by the Merchant Shipping Act 1894, and amendments thereto."

From the City Solicitor with reference to the proposals of the North Vancouver Residents and Ratepayers Association regarding the disposal of tax sale property held by the City – advising that the Council has no power to make a gift to any person of Municipal property – likewise it has no power to dispose of a property of value for a merely nominal sum.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Brown and resolved that the communication be received and filed and a copy of the Solicitor's opinion forwarded to the Association.

From the North Vancouver Residents and Ratepayers Association, reiterating the opinion formerly expressed that any increase in ferry rates would be considered by that body inimical to the best interests of the City and again expressing disapproval of any grant being made to any person or persons for publicity purposes.

RECEIVED AND FILED.

From A. Whittle, 335 Mahon Avenue, applying for the position of caretaker at Mahon Park.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the application be referred to the Parks Committee.

From the City of Sudbury, Ontario, submitting the following resolution for endorsement: "THAT the City Council of Sudbury go on record, asking the Dominion Government to deport all undesirables and Communists, and a copy of this resolution forwarded to the Government, at Ottawa, also to all Municipalities in the Dominion, asking them to endorse Sudbury's action."

Moved by Alderman Brown, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the communication be received and filed.

From John McKeith, 214 Esplanade East, applying for four to five months leave of absence.

The application was favourably recommended by the City Engineer.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that Mr. McKeith's application for stated leave of absence be granted.

From Henry M. Russell, 639 6<sup>th</sup> Street East, applying for a position as relieving Mate on the City Ferries.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Brown and resolved that the application be laid over pending the return of the Ferry Superintendent.

From J. L. Gallagher, Lynn Creek P. O. commenting on the placing of the City's Fire Insurance business. RECEIVED AND FILED.

From the Sanitary Inspector reporting on the Septic tank condition obtaining in the two hundred block Twenty-fifth Street East, and advising that the only permanent remedy for the situation was the installation of sanitary sewers.

The Engineer reported that a similar condition obtained in the corresponding block on Twenty-Fourth Street and that a connection could be made with the High School sewer at Twenty-Third Street.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Huggett and resolved that the Engineer prepare and submit to Council a report on the estimated cost of installing a sewer under the Local Improvement plan together with a report on the number of lots held by the City within the proposed area.

The Engineer submitted a Local Improvement report covering the proposed construction of a Twenty-four inch Storm Sewer on Ridgeway Avenue and in Blocks – eighty-two (82) seventy-seven (77) and fifty-eight (58) D. L. five hundred and fifty (550) from the South side of Eleventh Street to the North side of Sixteenth Street – The total frontage involved being 13739.9 feet – City's frontage for lane and intersections 398 feet – total estimated cost of the work is \$13,100.00 – proportion to be borne by the City \$6,706.07 – and the proportion to be borne by the owners of the land directly abutting the work \$6,393.93 – the estimated Special annual rate per foot frontage payable in twenty annual instalments being \$0.042.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the aforementioned Local Improvement report as submitted be approved and that such reports, estimates and statements be made, notices published and served and by-laws passed as shall be necessary to the proper passage of by-laws authorizing construction under the provisions of the Local Improvement Act upon the Initiative Plan.

From the Engineer confirming his report of February Twenty-third last in which the sum of \$12,000.00 was given as the estimated cost of maintenance required for the current year on the North Vancouver Floating Dock.

The Engineer reiterated a former statement that the timber work in the present structure was in a rotten and dangerous condition.

Moved by Alderman Huggett, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the most urgent reconstruction work as recommended by the Engineer be undertaken without delay at a cost of approximately \$12,000.00.

From the Building Inspector advising that he had refused to grant a building permit for the erection of a Gas Service station on Lots 3, 4, and 5, Block 68, D. L. 271 and that the applicant was appealing to the Board of Appeal provided for in Section 16 of the Town Planning Act – the property in question being located in a Class "B" residence district in which Service stations are not permitted under the City's Interim Zoning Bylaw.

Moved by Alderman Huggett, seconded by Alderman Brown and resolved that the action of the Building Inspector be confirmed.

# **TENDERS**

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that tenders be opened.

Whereupon the following tenders were opened.

# **FERRY UNIFORMS**

F. FRANCO		Three piece suit for Mates	\$45.00 each			
		Trousers for Captains	\$10.00 per pair			
TOM THE TAILOR   Cloth		Three piece suit for Mates	\$45.00 each			
	9371	Extra trousers	\$11.00 per pair			
	Cloth	Three piece suit for Mates	\$46.00 each			
	1542	Extra trousers	\$11.50 per pair			
Cloth 8089 Cloth 1103		Three piece suit for Mates	\$47.00 each			
		Extra trousers	\$12.00 per pair			
		Trousers for Deckhands	\$5.00 per pair			
A. J. KENNEDY		Three piece suit for Mates	\$45.00 each			
		Trousers for Captains \$14.00 pe				
20-22 oz. Indigo serge						
THOMAS H. HILL		Captain and Mates Caps \$1.75 each				

13 Captain and Mates Badges

Cap Covers

Deck-hands Caps

\$4.00 doz.

\$1.55 each

\$24.00 the lot

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Brown and resolved that the tenders be referred to the Ferry Superintendent for tabulation and report and the Committee be given power to act in allocating the contract.

# FIREMEN'S UNIFORMS

TOM THE TAILOR	Cloth	Three piece suit with extra	
	9371	trousers \$55.50 each	
	Cloth	Three piece suit with extra	
	8089	trousers \$58.50 each	

RAY	BROS	TAILORING	Three	piece	suit	with	extra	
CO. L	CO. LTD.		trouser	S				\$49.75 each

HARTLE	BROS	Cloth	Three	piece	suit	with	extra	
LTD.		91	trousers			\$48.00 each		
		Cloth	Three	piece	suit	with	extra	
		92	trousers	S				\$51.00 each

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Huggett and resolved that the tenders be referred to the Fire and Light Committee and the Fire Chief with power to act.

### 12,000 TAX NOTICES

NORTH SHORE PRESS LTD.	\$92.60
SHOEMAKER MCLEAN AND VEITCH LTD.	\$77.00
THE REVIEW	\$84.70

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the lowest tender be accepted namely that of SHOEMAKER MCLEAN AND VEITCH LTD. At the price of \$77.00

# BEDDING PLANTS As per list furnished

J.G. SPELLER AND CO.	\$66.00
	plus Sales tax
J.T. Hastie and Co.	\$85.00

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the tenders be referred to the Parks Committee with power to act.

From Alex Smith and Co. on behalf of a client offering the sum of \$120.00 cash for Lot 8, Block 4, D. L. 273.

The Assessor reported that the lot is situated on the South side of Keith Road between the Boulevard and Sutherland Avenue and is assessed at \$650.00 – size 50' x 140' – 1930 taxes \$29.52.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Brown and resolved that the offer made by Alex Smith and Co. be accepted subject to the necessary procedure being taken in posting the lot for sale at the price of \$120.00 cash and that the necessary by-law be prepared and submitted to the Council – the property to be sold free of taxes for the year \$27.68.

From E. N. Copping offering the sum of \$100.00 cash for Lot 5, Block 17, D. L. 273.

The Assessor reported that the lot is situated on the South side of Fifth Street East, 200 feet East of the Car line and is assessed at \$645.00 – size 50' x 137' – 1930 taxes \$27.68.

Moved by Alderman Brown, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the offer made by E. N. Copping be accepted subject to the necessary procedure being taken in posting the lot for sale at the price of \$100.00 cash and that the necessary bylaw be prepared and submitted to the Council – the property to be sold free of taxes for the year 1931.

From Alex Smith and Co. on behalf of a client offering the sum of \$100.00 each on terms of one third cash and the balance in six and twelve months with Interest at 7% per annum for lots 29 and 30, Block 6, D. L. 265.

The Assessor reported that the lots are situated on the North side of Fifteenth Street – West of Winch Avenue – and are assessed at \$600.00 each – size 50' x 150' each – 1930 taxes \$25.80 each lot.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Brown and resolved that the offer made by Alex Smith and Co. be accepted subject to the necessary procedure being taken in posting the lots for sale at the price of \$100.00 each on terms and that the necessary by-law be prepared and submitted to the Council.

#### <u>DUE ACCOUNTS</u>

Reports and recommendations of the Finance, School, Police, Ferry, Board of Works, Waterworks, Fire and Light, Health and Parks Committees were submitted by the respective Chairmen and read to the meeting and the Treasurer was authorized to pay the accounts in the following amounts:

Finance	\$132.00	
	949.50	
	1000.00	2081.50

Police		1283.86
School		14211.78
Ferry	5823.88	
	5813.36	11637.24
Board of Works	232.20	
	5271.29	
	1723.84	
	240.57	
	1049.22	
	5503.91	14021.03
Waterworks	1274.18	
	178.63	
	1940.82	
	171.23	3564.86
Fire and Light	959.50	
	964.46	1923.96
Health	140.00	
	140.81	
	114.31	
	140.00	535.12
Parks	194.64	
	87.62	
	224.83	
	87.40	594.49

# REPORTS OF THE COMMITTEES

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Brown and resolved that the following report of the FINANCE COMMITTEE be adopted:

RECOMMEND that the following bond be purchased for Sinking Fund Investment from the Royal Financial Corporation Ltd.

£ 50 CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 5% bond, due 1<sup>st</sup> January 1932, at 100.00; to yield 5%

RECOMMEND that the following bond be purchased from the offerings of A. E. Ames and Co. Vancouver, for Sinking Fund Investment:

£100 CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 4½% bond, due September 1<sup>st</sup> 1961 price 91.50 plus accrued interest, yielding 5.05% RECOMMEND THAT THE OFFER OF H. E. Caruth, 725 15<sup>th</sup> Street East, to purchase Lots 1 and 2, in the Re-subdivision of 1, 2, and 3, Block 12, D.L. 616 at the price of \$50.00 cash be accepted – subject to the City not being put to any expense in providing a water service to the property until a period of at least three years from this date.

RECOMMEND the adoption of the report of the Relief Department totalling \$708.81 for the month ended April.

## **SUMMARY**

Relief to indigents	\$315.50
Payment to institutions	316.31
Monthly pensions account	40.00
Medical Aid	37.00
	\$708.81

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Brown and resolved that the following report of the FERRY COMMITTEE be adopted:

Mr. K. A. Ray, Vancouver, was heard in regard to the rental of the Ferry Refreshment Stand at the Vancouver Wharf.

RECOMMEND that Mr. K. A. Ray be granted a three year lease as and from April 1<sup>st</sup> 1931, of the Ferry Refreshment Stand at the Vancovuer Terminal at a monthly rental of \$150.00 payable on the first day of each and every month in advance – the same terms and conditions to prevail as in the former lease save and except that there will be no renewal clause incorporated in the new lease.

RECOMMEND that Mr. H. W. Taylor, 17<sup>th</sup> and Boulevard be advised that arrangements have been made for the WASHINGTON to run whatever extra trips are necessary on Wednesday evenings – THAT the Captains are already instructed to run their boats promptly on schedule and that his observations in regard to the disembarking of autos from the Ferries – the closing of the gates at the ticket office – and the carriage of Bicycles on the WASHINGTON have been referred for consideration to the Ferry Superintendent.

RECOMMEND that the disputed account for \$543.92 rendered in 1930 by the Canadian National Steamships for work done in altering the Ferry Dock Anchor chains during dredging operations be paid.

RECOMMEND that the telegram from the Ferry Superintendent who is at Oakland California, be minuted – advising that the assembling of the engine for the new Ferry was about complete and that he expected to leave for Vancouver, Wednesday May 6<sup>th</sup>.

RECOMMEND that tenders be called to close on Monday, May 18<sup>th</sup> for one year's supply of coal for use on the City Ferries.

RECOMMEND that the following traffic report on the City Ferries be minuted and filed.

	January	February	March	April	Revenue
Passenger Auto	36,117	34,212	39,246	45,016	\$25,154.50
Trucks	8,656	8,510	8,630	9,493	\$11,360.60
Passengers:	219,302	205,408	219,446	233,805	
In cars	37,930	36,057	42,853	53,707	
TOTAL	257,232	241,465	262,299	287,512	\$59,297.35

RECOMMEND that the rate of insurance quoted on the new Ferry from the Bell-Irving Insurance Agencies Ltd., of 3½% plus 5% P. and I. Risks be laid over for consideration at a later date.

RECOMMEND that the Clerk place Burglary, Hold-up and Robbery insurance covering the Ferry system for a term of three years in the amounts an at the terms quoted.

RECOMMEND that the stenographer's transcription of the Ferry Superintendent's interview with Mr. Burns, Port Superintendent in regard to the transportation of vehicles on the Harbour Boards' Barge be laid over until Mr. Chalmers returns from California.

RECOMMEND that all Militia units in Vancouver be advised that free transportation will <u>not</u> be granted to the members of their units on the City Ferries on and after June 1<sup>st</sup> 1931.

RECOMMEND that the communication from Mr. J. Houlgrave 114 Queens Road West, complaining that he had been passed up in allotting the position of Mate on the WASHINGTON be laid over until the Superintendent returns from the South.

## <u>MOTIONS</u>

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that as Mayor has not yet returned from Ottawa, Alderman H. C. E. Anderson is hereby reappointed Acting-Mayor.

#### **BY-LAWS**

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Brown and resolved that leave now be granted to introduce at this meeting of Council a By-law entitled "THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER HIGHWAYS DEDICATION BY-LAW NUMBER TWO, 1931" and

that the said By-law receive three readings at this meeting of council and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure By-law.

Whereupon the By-law was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the By-law entitled "THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER HIGHWAYS DEDICATION BY-LAW NUMBER TWO, 1931" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the By-law was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Huggett, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the Committee Proceedings in respect to the By-law entitled "THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER HIGHWAYS DEDICATION BY-LAW NUMBER TWO, 1931" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Brown and resolved that the By-law entitled "THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER HIGHWAYS DEDICATION BY-LAW NUMBER TWO, 1931" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the By-law was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman Brown, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of Council a By-law entitled "CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER PERCENTAGE ADDITIONS BY-LAW 1931" and that the said By-law receive three readings at this meeting of Council and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure By-law.

Whereupon the By-law was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the By-law entitled "CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER PERCENTAGE ADDITIONS BY-LAW 1931" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the By-law was introduced and read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Brown, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the Committee Proceedings in respect to the By-law entitled "CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER PERCENTAGE ADDITIONS BY-LAW 1931" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Huggett and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER PERCENTAGE ADDITIONS BY-LAW 1931" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the By-law was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman Brown, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the By-law entitled "NORTH VANCOUVER CITY TAX LEVY BY-LAW 1931" be now reconsidered.

Whereupon the By-law was read and reconsidered.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Brown and resolved that the said By-law as read and reconsidered, be now finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal No. 1290.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Brown and resolved that the By-law entitled "CHESTERFIELD AVENUE, TWENTY-THIRD STREET AND WESTERN AVENUE (22<sup>nd</sup> to 27<sup>th</sup>) SANITARY SEWER INITIATIVE BY-LAW 1931" be now reconsidered.

Whereupon the By-law was read and reconsidered.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the said By-law as read and reconsidered, be now finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal No. 1291.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the By-law entitled "CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER LANE SOUTH OF SIXTH STREET (MAHON TO CHESTERFIELD) SANITARY SEWER LOCAL IMPROVEMENT DEBENTURE BY-LAW 1931" be now reconsidered.

Whereupon the By-law was read and reconsidered.

Moved by Alderman Brown, seconded by Alderman Huggett and resolved that the said By-law as read and reconsidered, be now finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal No. 1258.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Brown and resolved that the By-law entitled "CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER FIFTH STREET (MAHON TO LANE WEST OF LONSDALE) SANITARY SEWER LOCAL IMPROVEMENT DEBENTURE BY-LAW 1931" be now reconsidered.

Whereupon the By-law was read and reconsidered.

Moved by Alderman Brown, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the said By-law as read and reconsidered, be now finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal No. 1259.

Moved by Alderman Brown, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the By-law entitled "CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER EIGHTEENTH STREET (CHESTERFIELD TO LANE WEST OF LONSDALE) SANITARY SEWER LOCAL IMPROVEMENT DEBENTURE BY-LAW 1931" be now reconsidered.

Whereupon the By-law was read and reconsidered.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Brown and resolved that the said By-law as read and reconsidered, be now finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and Sealed with the Corporate Seal No. 1260.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the By-law entitled "CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER MAHON AVENUE (15<sup>th</sup> TO 17<sup>th</sup>) SANITARY SEWER LOCAL IMPROVEMENTS DEBENTURE BY-LAW 1931" be now reconsidered.

Whereupon the By-law was read and reconsidered.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Brown and resolved that the said By-law as read and reconsidered, be now finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal No. 1261.

Moved by Alderman Brown, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the By-law entitled "CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER SIXTH STREET (FORBES TO CHESTERFIELD) SANITARY SEWER LOCAL IMPROVEMENT DEBENTURE BY-LAW 1931" be now reconsidered.

Whereupon the By-law was read and reconsidered.

Moved by Alderman Huggett, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the said By-law as read and reconsidered, be now finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal No. 1262.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Brown and resolved that the By-law entitled "CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER SIXTH STREET (LANE EAST OF LONSDALE TO ST. DAVID'S) SANITARY SEWER LOCAL IMPROVEMENT DEBENTURE BY-LAW 1931" be now reconsidered.

Whereupon the By-law was read and reconsidered.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Huggett and resolved that the said By-law as read and reconsidered, be now finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal No. 1263.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the By-law entitled "CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER KEITH ROAD, LONSDALE AVENUE

AND SIXTH STREET, SANITARY SEWER LOCAL IMPROVEMENT DEBENTURE BY-LAW 1931" be now reconsidered.

Whereupon the By-law was read and reconsidered.

Moved by Alderman Brown, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the said By-law as read and reconsidered, be now finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal No. 1264.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Brown and resolved that the By-law entitled "CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER FOURTH STREET – SOUTH (LONSDALE TO LOT 12/134/271) CONCRETE SIDEWALK LOCAL IMPROVEMENT DEBENTURE BY-LAW 1931" be now reconsidered.

Whereupon the By-law was read and reconsidered.

Moved by Alderman Brown, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the said By-law as read and reconsidered, be now finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal No. 1265.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Brown and resolved that the By-law entitled "CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER FOURTH STREET – SOUTH (LOTS 12/134/271 TO N.E. ¼ LOT 3/135/271) CONCRETE SIDEWALK LOCAL IMPROVEMENT DEBENTURE BY-LAW 1931" be now reconsidered.

Whereupon the By-law was read and reconsidered.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Huggett and resolved that the said By-law as read and reconsidered, be now finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal No. 1266.

Moved by Alderman Brown, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the By-law entitled "CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER NINTH STREET – NORTH (EIGHTH TO SUTHERLAND) CONCRETE SIDEWALK LOCAL IMPROVEMENT DEBENTURE BY-LAW 1931" be now reconsidered.

Whereupon the By-law was read and reconsidered.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Brown and resolved that the said By-law as read and reconsidered, be now finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal No. 1267.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Brown and resolved that the By-law entitled "CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER NINTH STREET – SOUTH (ST. ANDREW'S TO RIDGEWAY) CONCRETE SIDEWALK LOCAL IMPROVEMENT DEBENTURE BY-LAW 1931" be now reconsidered.

Whereupon the By-law was read and reconsidered.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Huggett and resolved that the said By-law as read and reconsidered, be now finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal No. 1268.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Brown and resolved that the By-law entitled "CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER NINTH STREET – SOUTH (QUEENSBURY TO SUTHERLAND) CONCRETE SIDEWALK LOCAL IMPROVEMENT DEBENTURE BY-LAW 1931" be no reconsidered.

Whereupon the By-law was read and reconsidered.

Moved by Alderman Brown, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the said By-law as read and reconsidered, be now finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal No. 1269.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Huggett and resolved that the By-law entitled "CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER THIRTEENTH STREET COUTH (ST. ANDREW'S TO QUEENSBURY) CONCRETE SIDEWALK LOCAL IMPROVEMENT DEBENTURE BY-LAW 1931" be now reconsidered.

Whereupon the By-law was read and reconsidered.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Brown and resolved that the said By-law as read and reconsidered, be now finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal No. 1270.

Moved by Alderman Huggett, seconded by Alderman Brown and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER THIRTEENTH STREET – NORTH (MAHON TO LONSDALE) CONCRETE SIDEWALK LOCAL IMPROVEMENT DEBENTURE BY-LAW 1931" be now reconsidered.

Whereupon the By-law was read and reconsidered.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the said By-law as read and reconsidered, be now finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal No. 1271.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Huggett and resolved that the By-law entitled "CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER FOURTEENTH STREET – SOUTH (JONES TO CHESTERFIELD) CONCRETE SIDEWALK LOCAL IMPROVEMENT DEBENTURE BY-LAW 1931" be now reconsidered.

Whereupon the By-law was read and reconsidered.

Moved by Alderman Huggett, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the said By-law as read and reconsidered, be now finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal No. 1272.

Moved by Alderman Brown, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the By-law entitled "CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER FIFTEENTH STREET – SOUTH (LONSDALE TO ST. GEORGE'S) CONCRETE SIDEWALK LOCAL IMPROVEMENT DEBENTURE BY-LAW 1931" be now reconsidered.

Whereupon the By-law was read and reconsidered.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the said By-law as read and reconsidered, be now finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal No. 1273.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the By-law entitled "CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER SIXTEENTH STREET – SOUTH (CHESTERFIELD TO LOT 1/41/547) CONCRETE SIDEWALK LOCAL IMPROVEMENT BY-LAW 1931" be now reconsidered.

Whereupon the By-law was read and reconsidered.

Moved by Alderman Brown, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the said By-law as read and reconsidered, be now finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal No. 1274.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Huggett and resolved that the By-law entitled "CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER SEVENTEENTH STREET – NORTH (ST. GEORGE'S TO ST. ANDREW'S) CONCRETE SIDEWALK LOCAL IMPROVEMENT DEBENTURE BY-LAW 1931" be now reconsidered.

Whereupon the By-law was read and reconsidered.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the said By-law as read and reconsidered, be now finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal No. 1275.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Huggett and resolved that the By-law entitled "CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER NINETEENTH STREET – SOUTH (ST. GEORGE'S TO ST. ANDREW'S) CONCRETE SIDEWALK LOCAL IMPROVEMENT DEBENTURE BY-LAW 1931" be now reconsidered.

Whereupon the By-law was read and reconsidered.

Moved by Alderman Brown, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the said By-law as read and reconsidered, be now finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal No. 1276.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Huggett and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER TWENTY-FIRST STREET – NORTH (LONSDALE TO ST. ANDREW'S) CONCRETE SIDEWALK LOCAL IMPROVEMENT DEBENTURE BY-LAW 1931" be now reconsidered.

Whereupon the By-law was read and reconsidered.

Moved by Alderman Brown, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the said By-law as read and reconsidered, be now finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal No. 1277.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Brown and resolved that the By-law entitled "CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER BEWICKE AVENUE – EAST (LARSON TO EIGHTEENTH) CONCRETE SIDEWALK LOCAL IMPROVEMENT DEBENTURE BY-LAW 1931" be now reconsidered.

Whereupon the By-law was read and reconsidered.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Brown and resolved that the said By-law as read and reconsidered, be now finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal No. 1278.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the By-law entitled "CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER EIGHTH STREET – NORTH (QUEENSBURY TO SUTHERLAND) CONCRETE SIDEWALK LOCAL IMPROVEMENT DEBENTURE BY-LAW 1931" be now reconsidered.

Whereupon the By-law was read and reconsidered.

Moved by Alderman Brown, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the said By-law as read and reconsidered, be now finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal No. 1279.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Brown and resolved that the By-law entitled "CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER NINETEENTH STREET SOUTH (LONSDALE TO ST. GEORGE'S) CONCRETE SIDEWALK LOCAL IMPROVEMENT DEBENTURE BY-LAW 1931" be now reconsidered.

Whereupon the By-law was read and reconsidered.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Brown and resolved that the said By-law as read and reconsidered, be now finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal No. 1280.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that this meeting of Council do now resolve itself into Committee of the Whole.

# IN COMMITTEE

# IN COUNCIL

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Huggett and resolved that the foregoing report of the Committee of the Whole be adopted.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that this meeting of Council do now adjourn.

Whereupon the Council adjourned at 9:30 P.M.

E. H. BRIDGMAN MAYOR